From: Olivia Moune <olivia@landivar-architects.com>

Sent: 28 October 2025 13:14:58 UTC+00:00

To: "Andy Watt" <andy.watt@midsussex.gov.uk>

Cc: "Martin Landivar" <martin@Ilandivar-architects.com>

Subject: Re: NatureSpace Consultation- DM/25/1921| Proposal for 7 new build houses
Attachments: 2447-Supporting statement-15102024.pdf, 2447-Decision notice-21102024.pdf,

DM-25-1921.pdf

You don't often get email from olivia@landivar-architects.com. Learn why this is important
Dear Andy,

Further to your communication with Martin below, and the consultee comments from Nature
Space, please find attached the ecologist compliance report and approval decision for the
discharge of Condition 9 of DM/21/1118 . The Condition relates to the possible presence of
reptiles, amphibians and small mammals on the site.

The ecologist attended site between 10th and 12th September 2024, just over a year ago and the
Condition was signed off on 21st October 2024. Since this date, there has been further clearance
and development activity on the site therefore it is reasonable to submit the attached compliance
report as evidence that neither a Nature Space licence nor another PEA is required to establish
that there is no risk of impact to great crested newts on this site.

Kind regards,

Olivia Moune
BA (Hons) PG - DIP ARCH, ARB

T: 01273 739590
M: +44 7730052219

L ANDIVAR ARCHITECTS

Landivar Architects Ltd

The Workshop

Unit 3, 29-42 Windsor Street
Brighton

BN1 1RJ

On 27 Oct 2025, at 10:49, Martin Landivar <martin@landivar-architects.com>
wrote:


https://aka.ms/LearnAboutSenderIdentification

With kind regards,

Martin Landivar
BA (Hons) PG - DIP ARCH, ARB, RIBA

T: 01273 739590
M: +44 7919105614

L ANDIVAR ARCHITECTS

Landivar Architects Ltd

The Workshop

Unit 3, 29-42 Windsor Street
Brighton

BNI1 IRJ

Begin forwarded message:

From: Andy Watt <andy.watt@midsussex.gov.uk>
Subject: FW: NatureSpace Consultation- DM/25/1921|
Proposal for 7 new build houses

Date: 24 October 2025 at 17:56:08 GMT+1

To: "Landivar (martin@landivar-architects.com)"
<martin@landivar-architects.com>

Dear Mr Landivar

Please see comments from Nature Space attached. | look
forward to receiving your response in due course.

Kind regards

Andy Watt, BSc (Hons), MTPL, MRTPI
Senior Planning Officer

Development Management

01444 477517
andy.watt@midsussex.gov.uk
www.midsussex.gov.uk



mailto:andy.watt@midsussex.gov.uk
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.midsussex.gov.uk%2F&data=05%7C02%7Candy.watt%40midsussex.gov.uk%7C8bb3cd9809334bdb6ae508de162400fa%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C638972541393814439%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=C3Kwau64YaMGBu%2Bejh9bh4GVkbz65sJPK3cIESeTKqY%3D&reserved=0

Working together for a Better Mid Sussex

From: Laura Downs <Laura.Downs@naturespaceuk.com>

Sent: 22 October 2025 10:42

To: Andy Watt <andy.watt@midsussex.gov.uk>

Cc: planninginfo <planninginfo@midsussex.gov.uk>

Subject: NatureSpace Consultation- DM/25/1921| Proposal for 7 new
build houses

Good morning Andy,
Planning reference: DM/25/1921| Proposal for 7 new build houses

Thank you for consulting us on the above application, please find
attached our consultation comments. Should there be any changes to
the proposed development, please reconsult us.

Best wishes,

Laura Downs (she/her)
District Licensing Officer (Great Crested Newts) — West Sussex

NatureSpace Partnership

e: Laura.Downs@naturespaceuk.com

m: 07356 159774

W: www.naturespaceuk.com

Company operating hours: Monday to Thursday 09:00 -
17:00

NATURESPACE

P ARTNERSH


mailto:Laura.Downs@naturespaceuk.com
mailto:andy.watt@midsussex.gov.uk
mailto:planninginfo@midsussex.gov.uk
mailto:Laura.Downs@naturespaceuk.com
https://eur02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.naturespaceuk.com%2F&data=05%7C02%7Candy.watt%40midsussex.gov.uk%7C8bb3cd9809334bdb6ae508de162400fa%7C248de4f9d13548cca4c8babd7e9e8703%7C0%7C0%7C638972541393839719%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=CSRNIRz%2Frb55RsVosh3lPQqMtmCg9rpAgPcx7y%2B40bo%3D&reserved=0
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Follow us on

LinkedIn

The information contained in this email may be subject to public disclosure under the Freedom
of Information Act 2000. Unless the information contained in this email is legally exempt from
disclosure, we cannot guarantee that we will not provide the whole or part of this email to a
third party making a request for information about the subject matter of this email. This email
and any attachments may contain confidential information and is intended only to be seen and
used by the named addressees. If you are not the named addressee, any use, disclosure, copying,
alteration or forwarding of this email and its attachments is unauthorised. If you have received
this email in error please notify the sender immediately by email or by calling +44 (0) 1444 458
166 and remove this email and its attachments from your system. The views expressed within
this email and any attachments are not necessarily the views or policies of Mid Sussex District
Council. We have taken precautions to minimise the risk of transmitting software viruses, but
we advise you to carry out your own virus checks before accessing this email and any
attachments. Except where required by law, we shall not be responsible for any damage, loss or
liability of any kind suffered in connection with this email and any attachments, or which may
result from reliance on the contents of this email and any attachments.
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Introduction

CSM Ecology was commissioned by Cells 4 Life Group, East Lodge Farm, Malthouse
Lane, Hurstpierpoint, West Sussex to provide an Ecological Clerk of Works at land near
Burgess Hill, West Sussex. The site is approximately 0.5ha in size and comprises scrub,
ruderal plants, rough grasses, bare ground, partially wet ditches, earth banks, scattered
trees and unmanaged hedgerows on the site boundaries. The site was previously
surveyed, and a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal completed on 19t February
2021. Subsequently planning permission was granted under the following
conditions:

Condition 9

No development, including ground works, shall commence until vegetation and
any piles of rubble or other suitable reptile refugia have first been cleared under
a watching brief from an experienced and qualified ecologist / wildlife advisor and
a written statement of compliance provided by them to the local planning
authority.

This work must be completed during suitable daytime temperatures > 10 °C
between March and the end of October to allow any reptiles to move out of
harm's way.

Reason: To prevent loss of, and contribute to a net gain in, biodiversity, in
accordance with Policy DP38 of the Mid Sussex District Plan and 180 of the NPPF.

Condition 10

No trees, hedgerow trees or shrubs shall be removed without prior written
approval from the local planning authority and no woody vegetation shall be
removed or cut back during the main period of bird nesting (1 March to end of
August) unless first checked and declared free of active nests and bat roosts by
experienced and qualified ecologist / wildlife advisor.

Reason: To prevent loss of, and contribute to a net gain in, biodiversity, in
accordance with Policy DP38 of the Mid Sussex District Plan and 180 of the NPPF.

The purpose of the report is to provide evidence and to confirm compliance with
Planning Condition 9 and 10.

In accordance with the above conditions an Ecological Clerk of Works attended
the site between the 10-12t" of September to supervise all ground clearance works
which involved:
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e The inspection and removal of all rubble piles
e The cutting removal off ruderal vegetation
e Stripping of grassland areas

Prior to the works a toolbox talk box talk was given to all site operatives about the
sequencing of the works, the procedures and potential risk to wildlife.

ECoW Supervision During the works
The site operations comprised clearance of rubble piles, clearance of unmanaged

grassland and ruderal vegetation.

The EcoW supervision comprised:
e Checking of rubble piles for presence of reptiles, amphibians and small
mammals, prior to clearance and during the removal operation,
e The grass areas were similarly inspected for potential wildlife which may
have been foraging or taken refuge.

Local Planning Authority Requirements

LPA requirements are that an ecologist attend the site and supervise the clearance
work and that a report be produced by a suitably experienced ecologist to confirm
and demonstrate compliance with condition 9 and 10 for which photographs have
also been provide and can be found in Appendix A. The works involved:

e The clearance of rubble piles and vegetation at the site.
e The retention of woody species such as hedgerows and trees at the site.

The reasons for the requirements above are to demonstrate compliance with
Policy DP38 of the Mid Sussex District Plan and 180 of the NPPF to prevent
ecological harm to wildlife.

Local, Regional and National Planning Policy - The Natural Environment and Rural
Communities (NERC) Act came into force on 1st Oct 2006. Section 40 of the Act
requires all public bodies to have regard to biodiversity conservation when
carrying out their functions. This is commonly referred to as the ‘biodiversity duty’.
This duty extends to all public bodies the biodiversity duty of Section 74 of the
Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 (CROW), which placed a duty on
Government and Ministers. The aim of the biodiversity duty is to raise the profile
of biodiversity in England and Wales, so that the conservation of biodiversity
becomes properly embedded in all relevant policies and decisions made by public
authorities. Mid Sussex District Council will have regard to the environmental
implications of development; will not permit development that would materially
harm protected species of animal or plant, or its habitat; and will promote and
encourage enhancement of the environment.
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National Planning Policy framework - The National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF) published in 2012 provides guidance for local planning authorities on the
content of their Local Plan but is also a material consideration in determining
planning applications. The NPPF has replaced much existing planning policy
guidance.

Planning and Biodiversity - The NPPF emphasises that the purposes of the planning
system is to contribute to the achievement of sustainable development and that this
gives rise to the need for the planning system to perform a number of roles, such as
contributing to protecting and enhancing the natural, built and historic environment
and helping to improve biodiversity. The NPPF also states that the planning system
should provide a net gain for biodiversity wherever possible and contribute to the
Government’s commitment to halt the loss of biodiversity.

Conclusion

The site visits recorded the LPA requirements have been fulfilled in regard to the
following conditions:

Condition 9 Conclusion

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

This work must be completed during suitable daytime temperatures > 10 0C
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

Condition 10 Conclusion

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





Hurstpierpoint ECoW Report 4/10/2024 Page 6

An Ecologist attended the site during the 10th -12th September 2024 in the
capacity of an Ecological Clerk of Works a toolbox talk was given to all site
operative in regards of the potential for protected species such as reptiles and
nesting birds and that if any were found to be at risk all works were to cease
immediately until the ecologist had assessed the situation.

All vegetation and rubble at the site were subsequently checked by the ecologist
prior to removal. No wildlife was found to be at risk during this process (were
wildlife to be found, these would have been placed at a safe and suitable location
by the ecologist).

The works proceeded in accordance with Planning Condition 9 & 10 and were
completed without any risk or harm to wildlife. All woody vegetation was retained
during the site clearance such as trees and hedgerows and they remained
undisturbed during the site clearance.
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Appendix A - Photographs

Figures 1- 2 Show shrubby vegetation and rubble and rock piles which were checked and removed
from site.
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Figures 3-4 Of tall ruderal vegetation which was checked prior to clearance at the site the trees in the
photograph have been retained and remained undisturbed during the site clearance.
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Figures 5-6 shows areas of hardstanding cleared during the works the woody vegetation that can be
seen was retained and remained undisturbed during the site works.
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Figures 7-8 Are areas cleared of tall ruderal and grassland species and show the site after the
completion of works.
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Figures 9-10 Additional areas photographs of the cleared field and bank to the left.






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




Oaklands Switchboard 01444 458166
Oaklands Road

Haywards Heath DX 300320 Haywards Heath 1
MID SUSS EX West Sussex www.midsussex.gov.uk
DISTRICT COUNCIL RH16 1SS

Ms C Rees

Mr Luke Carter

Lewis And Co Planning
2 Port Hall Road
Brighton

BN1 5PD

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE)
(ENGLAND) ORDER 2015

PERMISSION

REFERENCE: DM/24/2447

DESCRIPTION: DISCHARGE OF PLANNING CONDITIONS NOS 9 AND 10
RELATING TO PLANNING APPLICATION DM/21/1118.

LOCATION: EAST LODGE FARM, MALTHOUSE LANE, HURSTPIERPOINT,

WEST SUSSEX
DECISION DATE: 21 OCT 2024
CASE OFFICER: STEVEN KING - STEVEN.KING@MIDSUSSEX.GOV.UK
| refer to your application for approval of details reserved by condition received 8th October
2024.
The Authority has considered your application, and | can confirm the following:-
Conditions:

9. | can confirm that the following details are acceptable and that condition 9 of planning
permission DM/21/1118 is discharged:

-letter dated 7th October 2024 from Lewis and Co Planning
-LPA Compliance Report from CSM Ecology dated 4th October 2024

10. | can confirm that the following details are acceptable and that condition 10 of
planning permission DM/21/1118 is discharged:

-letter dated 7th October 2024 from Lewis and Co Planning
-LPA Compliance Report from CSM Ecology dated 4th October 2024

DECISION NOTICE Page 1





Ann Biggs
Assistant Director Planning and Sustainable Economy
PEDCOZ

DECISION NOTICE Page 2






Consultee Response

Case Ref: DM/25/1921 Date: 22 October 2025

From: NatureSpace Response: Further information required

This planning application is for: Proposal for 7 new build houses

Summary
- The development falls within the amber impact risk zone for great crested newts. Impact
risk zones have been derived through advanced modelling to create a species distribution
map which predicts likely presence. In the amber impact zone, there is suitable habitat
and a likelihood of great crested newt presence.

- There are 10 ponds within 500m of the development proposal, the closest of which is
located 98m north east

- There are 10 historical and some more recent great crested newt records within 250 and
500m.

- Natural England Standing Advice guidance for local planning authorities advises that
surveys on ponds up to 500m from development sites should be requested.

Figure above: Outline of the site (red) in the context of the surrounding landscape, including the Impact Risk Zones for
GCN. Ponds are shown in light blue, not all ponds shown on map. A 250m buffer is shown around the site in green and a
500m buffer in blue. Contains public sector information licensed under the Open Government Licence v3.0.

Ecological Information
The applicant has not provided any ecological information for the site. Therefore, it cannot be
determined if there is a likely impact.

© NatureSpace Partnership Limited 2025. This work is the copyright of NatureSpace Partnership
Limited and is not to be reproduced, edited, modified or used for any purposes without express
written permission from NatureSpace Partnership Limited.





Conclusion and recommendations

The above development is located within the amber impact risk zone, meaning there is suitable
habitat and a likelihood of great crested newt presence. Additionally there are several records of
great crested newts within 500m of the development site. The applicant has not submitted an
ecological report, meaning currently the site has not been evaluated for great crested newt
suitability and the likely impacts of the development on the species have not been assessed.

Due to the presence of nearby ponds and the scrub habitat which is believed to be onsite, and in
line with Place Services’ previous comments, a preliminary ecological appraisal (with a great
crested newt assessment) will be required here.

Therefore, in line with the guidance from Natural England (Great crested newts: District Level
Licensing for development projects, Natural England, March 2021), there is a reasonable likelihood
that great crested newts will be impacted by the development proposals and therefore, the
applicant must either:

- Submit a NatureSpace Report or Certificate to demonstrate that the impacts of the
proposed development can be addressed through Mid Sussex District Council’s District
Licence. This method of licensing often removes the need for survey work and onsite
mitigation for great crested newts as it provides compensation habitats off site. This
would provide certainty to the applicant, as their licensing route can be determined within
10 working days at any time of the year (more details can be found at
www.naturespaceuk.com); or

- Provide further information (preliminary ecological appraisal to assess onsite habitats and
ponds with ecological connectivity to the site), in line with Natural England’s Standing
Advice, to rule out impacts to great crested newts*, or demonstrate how any impacts can
be addressed through appropriate mitigation/compensation proposals**; or

- Ifitis determined that there is no suitable habitat impacted on site and the likelihood of
great crested newts is very low, then a precautionary working statement in the form of
Reasonable Avoidance Measures (RAMs)/Non-Licenced Method Statement (NLMS)
strategy documents completed by a suitably qualified ecologist may be acceptable for the
development.

*i.e., to show that any ponds within 500m are not suitable for great crested newts and/or show how any
potential impacts can be avoided.

*To do so, surveys to determine presence/likely absence and population size class assessments may need to
be undertaken by a suitably qualified ecologist in accordance with Natural England’s Standing (Great crested
newts: advice for making planning decisions — GOV.UK) (and if using eDNA surveys, the Great Crested Newt
Environmental eDNA Technical Advice Note (Natural England 2014)). If GCN are identified, appropriate
mitigation and compensatory measures will need to be identified to satisfy planning requirements and a
site-based mitigation licence may be required. Surveys are seasonally constrained.

Please note that Naturespace can be contacted at any time for a quote to enter the District Licensing
scheme, which does not require further seasonally constrained newt survey work. More details on the
District Licensing Scheme operated by the council can be found at www.naturespaceuk.com

Contact details: info@naturespaceuk.com

© NatureSpace Partnership Limited 2025. This work is the copyright of NatureSpace Partnership
Limited and is not to be reproduced, edited, modified or used for any purposes without express
written permission from NatureSpace Partnership Limited.



https://naturespaceuk.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/DLL-Guidance-Document-for-LPAs-NatureSpace-Partnership_March2021.pdf

https://naturespaceuk.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/DLL-Guidance-Document-for-LPAs-NatureSpace-Partnership_March2021.pdf

http://www.naturespaceuk.com/

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/great-crested-newts-surveys-and-mitigation-for-development-projects

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/great-crested-newts-surveys-and-mitigation-for-development-projects

http://www.naturespaceuk.com/



Relationship between NatureSpace and Mid Sussex District Council

Mid Sussex District Council holds a Great Crested Newt Organisational (or “District”) Licence
granted by Natural England. This is administered by NatureSpace Partnership through their District
Licensing Scheme as the council’s delivery partner. A dedicated 'District Licensing Officer' is
employed by NatureSpace to provide impartial advice to the council and help guide them and
planning applicants through the process. All services and arrangements are facilitated in an
unbiased, independent and transparent manner. You can find out more

at www.naturespaceuk.com

Legislation, Policy and Guidance

Reasonable Likelihood of Protected Species

Permission can be refused if adequate information on protected species is not provided by an
applicant, as it will be unable to assess the impacts on the species and thus meet the requirements
of the National Planning Policy Framework (2023), ODPM Circular 06/2005 or the Conservation of
Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended). The Council has the power to request
information under Article 4 of the Town and Country (Planning Applications) Regulations 1988
(511988.1812) (S3) which covers general information for full applications. CLG 2007 ‘The validation
of planning applications’ states that applications should not be registered if there is a requirement
for an assessment of the impacts of a development on biodiversity interests.

Section 99 of ODPM Circular 06/2005 states:

“It is essential that the presence or otherwise of protected species, and the extent that they may be
affected by the proposed development, is established before the planning permission is granted,
otherwise all relevant material considerations may not have been addressed in making the decision.
The need to ensure ecological surveys are carried out should therefore only be left to coverage under
planning conditions in exceptional circumstances, with the result that the surveys are carried out
after planning permission has been granted. However, bearing in mind the delay and cost that may
be involved, developers should not be required to undertake surveys for protected species unless
there is a reasonable likelihood of the species being present and affected by development. Where
this is the case, the survey should be completed and any necessary measures to protect the species
should be in place, through conditions and / or planning obligations before permission is granted.”

Great crested newts

Great crested newts and their habitats are fully protected under the Conservation of Habitats and
Species Regulations 2017 (as amended). Therefore, it is illegal to deliberately capture, injure, kill,
disturb or take great crested newts or to damage or destroy breeding sites or resting places. Under
the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) it is illegal to intentionally or recklessly disturb
any great crested newts occupying a place of shelter or protection, or to obstruct access to any
place of shelter or protection (see the legislation or seek legal advice for full details). Local
planning authorities have a statutory duty in exercising of all their functions to ‘have regard, so far
is consistent with the proper exercise of those functions, to the purpose of conserving and
enhancing biodiversity,’ as stated under section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural
Communities Act 2006 (as amended), as well as a duty under the Conservation of Habitats and

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



Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) to have regard to the requirements of the Habitats
Directive. As a result, GCN and their habitats are a material consideration in the planning process.

Lifespan of Ecological Reports and Surveys

Validity of ecological reports and surveys can become compromised overtime due to being out-of-
date. CIEEM Guidelines for Ecological Report Writing (CIEEM, 2017) states, if the age of data is
between 12-18 months, “the report authors should highlight whether they consider it likely to be
necessary to update surveys”. If the age of the data is between 18 months to 3 years an updated
survey and report will be required and anything more than 3 years old “The report is unlikely to still
be valid and most, if not all, of the surveys are likely to need to be updated”.

© NatureSpace Partnership Limited 2025. This work is the copyright of NatureSpace Partnership
Limited and is not to be reproduced, edited, modified or used for any purposes without express
written permission from NatureSpace Partnership Limited.






